
AGENDA 
QLife Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, October 28, 2021 | 12:00 PM 
Google Hangouts - https://meet.google.com/ybv-sqae-eki 

 

 
 12:00 Call to Order 

 
 12:00 Approval of Agenda 

  
 12:00 Consent Agenda (items of a routine nature: minutes, documents, items previously discussed) 

- September 23, 2021 Minutes 

 
 12:05 Finance 

- Financial Report, Reconciliation and Analysis – Mike Middleton 
 

  12:15 Discussion Items 
- Admin Staff Updates – Matthew Klebes 

o Dry Hollow RFP 
- Broadband Action Team – Matthew Klebes & Carrie Pipinich 
- Aristo Technical Management Report – John Amery 

 
12:40 Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)(f) To consider information or records that are exempt by law from 

public inspection. 
 

Old/New Business 

Next Board Meeting Date: October 28, 2021 | 12:00 PM 

Adjourn 

 
*Agenda subject to change   
*Executive Session held as needed 

 
An executive session may, in the discretion of the presiding officer, be called based on one or more of the following: ORS  192.660  (2)(a)  Consider  
employment  issues;  (2)(e)  Real  property’  (2)(f)  Consider  exempt  records  or information; (2)(g) Competitive trade or commerce negotiations; 
(2)(h) Consult with counsel re litigation; (2)(m)(D) & (E) Discuss information regarding security of telecom systems and data transmission. 

https://meet.google.com/ybv-sqae-eki


 

 

 

 
 

 

Consent Agenda 

 September 23, 2021 Minutes 

 

 



Page 1  

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
QLife Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, September 23, 2021 
Via Google Hangouts 

 
Call to Order President Hege calls the meeting to order at 12:06 PM. 

Roll Call Scott Hege, Scott Randall, Dale Lepper, John Amery, Keith Mobley, Kristen Campbell, Joseph Franell, Tom 
McGowan, Dan McNeely, Stephanie Krell, Matthew Klebes, Mike Middleton. 

 
Changes to the Agenda 
There are no changes. 

 
[[Mr. Lepper moves to approve the agenda. Mr. Randall seconds the motion, which passes unanimously.]] 

 
Approval of the Consent Agenda 
 
[[Mr. Lepper moves to approve the consent agenda. Mr. Randall seconds the motion, which passes unanimously.]] 

 
Finance 

 
Financial Report, Analysis and Reconciliation 
Mr. Middleton presents the August financial report to the board included in the packet. He notes that the Operations 
fund is on track and stands at one percent ahead of where we estimated it would be. He did not include the accounts 
receivable in the report because his is working out some kinks in the new financial software. He adds that some accounts 
will be researched by the finance team to clarify some expenses. For example, the legal services account is at 95% 
execution and administrative fees are at 89% execution. This could be due to invoice timing or miscoding. 
 
The Capital fund has transfers coming in as it should and overall both the Capital and Maupin funds are doing well. 
 
There are no questions from the Board. 
 
Action Items 

 
Commstructure Work Order #31 Amendment #1 
Mr. McNeely refers to the amendment in the board packet and informs the Board that the project design is almost 
complete. Permits are being finalized and the next step will be posting the RFP. The bidding process and RFP support 
was not included in the original work order, which is why the amendment was drafted. 
 
President Hege asks about the estimated total cost of the project and Mr. Klebes responds that it is around $236,000. 
 
[[Mr. Lepper moves to approve Work Order #31 Amendment #1 to extend the expiration date of the original Work 
Order and add RFP, Bid Process & Construction support for the Dry Hollow CAB project. Mr. Randall seconds the 
motion, which passes unanimously.]] 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Administration Update 



Page 2  

Mr. Klebes informs the Board that the NTIA application has been received and is currently in review. He expects to 
hear back from Business Oregon in November. Business Oregon had some follow up questions for additional details on 
the project. Mr. Klebes interprets that as a positive sign. 
 
Mr. Franell adds that he met with the NTIA staff about all of the submitted projects and came away feeling good about 
the conversation.  
 
Mr. Klebes, Mr. Amery and Ms. Pipinich are meeting weekly with RISI and are expecting to bring back action items to 
the Board soon. 
 
Mr. Klebes notes that we are moving forward on the Liberty Street Extension project and have heard back from 
Charter, which had been holding up progress. Mr. McNeely expands by informing the Board that Charter is doing 
make-readys and that is what is causing the delay. 
 
Mr. Amery discusses the Downtown Overbuild project, which should be starting next week. We are in the process of 
getting right of way permits from the city and if things go smoothly, the entire project should be complete by the 
October board meeting. Mr. Franell adds that he hopes they can begin work on Liberty Street as soon as the 
Downtown Overbuild project is complete. 
 
President Hege wonders what the next steps are once Liberty Street is completed. Mr. Klebes responds that the work 
with RISI will facilitate next steps. 
 
President Hege asks for an update on The Grove and Mr. Klebes explains that it is in a similar place as Liberty Street. 
Both are projects of opportunity for the general QLife footprint.  
 
Northern Wasco PUD Bond 
Mr. Klebes refers to the PUD bond invoice in the packet and explains that this is part of the pole attachment agreement 
and is included to keep the Board informed. 
 
Aristo Technical Management Report 
Mr. Amery presents his technical report to the Board and states that there are no current damages. His current focus 
is on the fiber to the home solution as well as product management. 
 
President Hege wonder how the Walnut Street repair was resolved. Mr. Klebes says he spoke with the city manager 
about the cost of repair versus an insurance claim and it made the most cost effective sense to simply repair the 
damage. Mr. Amery adds that there are currently no live customers on that line so it was only repaired and not 
upgraded. 
 
Executive Session started at 12:43 PM 
 
Executive Session ended at 1:12 PM 
 
The meeting is adjourned at 1:12 PM 
 
The next regularly scheduled board meeting is set for October 28, 2021. 
                

 
 

These minutes were approved by the QLife Board on   . 
 
 

       
Lee Weinstein, Secretary 



 

 

 

 
 

 

Financial Reports  

 September Financial Statement 

 September Finance Reconciliations 

 September Financial Analysis 

 

 
 



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:05
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2022 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6000     Qlife Operations                      APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                    -659,977           0    -659,977            .00            .00    -659,977.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                       -741,420           0    -741,420    -170,945.00            .00    -570,475.00   23.1%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                         -1,200           0      -1,200        -292.48            .00        -907.52   24.4%
421 MISCELLANEOUS                                 -200           0        -200            .00            .00        -200.00     .0%
520 MATERIALS & SERVICES                       341,206           0     341,206     111,291.17            .00     229,914.83   32.6%
530 CAPITAL OUTLAY                              20,000           0      20,000            .00            .00      20,000.00     .0%
550 TRANSFERS OUT                              595,020           0     595,020     148,755.00            .00     446,265.00   25.0%
570 CONTINGENCY                                162,935           0     162,935            .00            .00     162,935.00     .0%
590 UNAPPROPRIATED                             283,636           0     283,636            .00            .00     283,636.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife Operations                          0           0           0      88,808.69            .00     -88,808.69  100.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES   -1,402,797           0  -1,402,797    -171,237.48            .00  -1,231,559.52
                           TOTAL EXPENSES    1,402,797           0   1,402,797     260,046.17            .00   1,142,750.83



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:05
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2022 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6010     Qlife Capital                         APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                  -1,784,664           0  -1,784,664            .00            .00  -1,784,664.00     .0%
410 PROPERTY TAXES                          -5,000,000           0  -5,000,000            .00            .00  -5,000,000.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                        -19,000           0     -19,000    -152,851.52            .00     133,851.52  804.5%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                         -9,000           0      -9,000      -1,753.16            .00      -7,246.84   19.5%
421 MISCELLANEOUS                                    0           0           0    -132,145.99            .00     132,145.99  100.0%
450 TRANSFERS IN                              -645,020           0    -645,020    -148,755.00            .00    -496,265.00   23.1%
530 CAPITAL OUTLAY                           6,391,540           0   6,391,540      54,050.82     107,593.76   6,229,895.42    2.5%
570 CONTINGENCY                                391,019           0     391,019            .00            .00     391,019.00     .0%
580 RESERVED                                   675,125           0     675,125            .00            .00     675,125.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife Capital                             0           0           0    -381,454.85     107,593.76     273,861.09  100.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES   -7,457,684           0  -7,457,684    -435,505.67            .00  -7,022,178.33
                           TOTAL EXPENSES    7,457,684           0   7,457,684      54,050.82     107,593.76   7,296,039.42



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:05
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2022 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6020     Qlife - Maupin                        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                    -118,610           0    -118,610            .00            .00    -118,610.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                         -7,360           0      -7,360      -2,644.61            .00      -4,715.39   35.9%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                           -700           0        -700        -116.03            .00        -583.97   16.6%
520 MATERIALS & SERVICES                        16,710           0      16,710       6,006.20            .00      10,703.80   35.9%
530 CAPITAL OUTLAY                              51,000           0      51,000            .00            .00      51,000.00     .0%
550 TRANSFERS OUT                               50,000           0      50,000            .00            .00      50,000.00     .0%
570 CONTINGENCY                                  8,960           0       8,960            .00            .00       8,960.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife - Maupin                            0           0           0       3,245.56            .00      -3,245.56  100.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES     -126,670           0    -126,670      -2,760.64            .00    -123,909.36
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      126,670           0     126,670       6,006.20            .00     120,663.80



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:05
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2022 03

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL            0           0           0    -289,400.60     107,593.76     181,806.84  100.0%

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Mike Middleton **                                          



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:05
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      5

                                                                                                         

                                                          REPORT OPTIONS                          

               Field #     Total  Page Break
  Sequence 1       1         Y        Y
  Sequence 2       5         Y        N
  Sequence 3       0         N        N
  Sequence 4       0         N        N

  Report title: 
   YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT              

  Includes accounts exceeding   0% of budget.
  Print totals only: Y                          Year/Period: 2022/ 3
  Print Full or Short description: F            Print MTD Version: N
  Print full GL account: N
  Format type: 1                                Roll projects to object: N
  Double space: N                               Carry forward code: 1
  Suppress zero bal accts: Y
  Include requisition amount: N
  Print Revenues-Version headings: N
  Print revenue as credit: Y
  Print revenue budgets as zero: N
  Include Fund Balance: N
  Print journal detail: N
      From Yr/Per: 2021/ 1
         To Yr/Per: 2021/ 1
  Include budget entries: Y
  Incl encumb/liq entries: Y
  Sort by JE # or PO #: J
  Detail format option: 1
  Include additional JE comments: N
  Multiyear view: D
  Amounts/totals exceed 999 million dollars: N

         Find Criteria
Field Name         Field Value

Fund               60*
Department         
Sub Depart         
Function           
Category           
Character Code     
Org                
Object             
Project            
Account type       
Account status     
Rollup Code        
                   



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:07
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2021 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6000     Qlife Operations                      APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                    -191,714           0    -191,714            .00            .00    -191,714.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                       -668,200           0    -668,200    -221,480.00            .00    -446,720.00   33.1%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                         -1,200           0      -1,200        -498.72            .00        -701.28   41.6%
421 MISCELLANEOUS                                 -200           0        -200      -1,200.00            .00       1,000.00  600.0%
520 MATERIALS & SERVICES                       158,708           0     158,708      55,045.00            .00     103,663.00   34.7%
550 TRANSFERS OUT                              376,220           0     376,220      94,055.01            .00     282,164.99   25.0%
590 UNAPPROPRIATED                              54,350           0      54,350            .00            .00      54,350.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife Operations                   -272,036           0    -272,036     -74,078.71            .00    -197,957.29   27.2%

                           TOTAL REVENUES     -861,314           0    -861,314    -223,178.72            .00    -638,135.28
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      589,278           0     589,278     149,100.01            .00     440,177.99



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:07
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2021 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6010     Qlife Capital                         APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                  -1,853,727           0  -1,853,727            .00            .00  -1,853,727.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                        -19,000           0     -19,000     -49,140.00            .00      30,140.00  258.6%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                        -25,200           0     -25,200      -3,736.36            .00     -21,463.64   14.8%
450 TRANSFERS IN                              -426,220           0    -426,220     -94,055.01            .00    -332,164.99   22.1%
530 CAPITAL OUTLAY                              80,000           0      80,000     199,082.79            .00    -119,082.79  248.9%
570 CONTINGENCY                                -43,253           0     -43,253            .00            .00     -43,253.00     .0%
580 RESERVED                                   675,125           0     675,125            .00            .00     675,125.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife Capital                    -1,612,275           0  -1,612,275      52,151.42            .00  -1,664,426.42   -3.2%

                           TOTAL REVENUES   -2,324,147           0  -2,324,147    -146,931.37            .00  -2,177,215.63
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      711,872           0     711,872     199,082.79            .00     512,789.21



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:07
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2021 03

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
6020     Qlife - Maupin                        APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

400 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                    -169,456           0    -169,456            .00            .00    -169,456.00     .0%
414 CHARGES FOR SERVICE                         -7,360           0      -7,360       3,516.39            .00     -10,876.39  -47.8%
417 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                           -700           0        -700        -361.93            .00        -338.07   51.7%
520 MATERIALS & SERVICES                        17,710           0      17,710       2,291.48            .00      15,418.52   12.9%
530 CAPITAL OUTLAY                              51,000           0      51,000            .00            .00      51,000.00     .0%
550 TRANSFERS OUT                               50,000           0      50,000            .00            .00      50,000.00     .0%
570 CONTINGENCY                                 45,006           0      45,006            .00            .00      45,006.00     .0%
580 RESERVED                                    13,800           0      13,800            .00            .00      13,800.00     .0%

     TOTAL Qlife - Maupin                            0           0           0       5,445.94            .00      -5,445.94  100.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES     -177,516           0    -177,516       3,154.46            .00    -180,670.46
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      177,516           0     177,516       2,291.48            .00     175,224.52



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:07
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2021 03

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL   -1,884,311           0  -1,884,311     -16,481.35            .00  -1,867,829.65     .9%

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Mike Middleton **                                          



Wasco County, OR

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 10/26/2021 09:07
User:             mikem
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      5

                                                                                                         

                                                          REPORT OPTIONS                          

               Field #     Total  Page Break
  Sequence 1       1         Y        Y
  Sequence 2       5         Y        N
  Sequence 3       0         N        N
  Sequence 4       0         N        N

  Report title: 
   YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT              

  Includes accounts exceeding   0% of budget.
  Print totals only: Y                          Year/Period: 2021/ 3
  Print Full or Short description: F            Print MTD Version: N
  Print full GL account: N
  Format type: 1                                Roll projects to object: N
  Double space: N                               Carry forward code: 1
  Suppress zero bal accts: Y
  Include requisition amount: N
  Print Revenues-Version headings: N
  Print revenue as credit: Y
  Print revenue budgets as zero: N
  Include Fund Balance: N
  Print journal detail: N
      From Yr/Per: 2021/ 1
         To Yr/Per: 2021/ 1
  Include budget entries: Y
  Incl encumb/liq entries: Y
  Sort by JE # or PO #: J
  Detail format option: 1
  Include additional JE comments: N
  Multiyear view: D
  Amounts/totals exceed 999 million dollars: N

         Find Criteria
Field Name         Field Value

Fund               60*
Department         
Sub Depart         
Function           
Category           
Character Code     
Org                
Object             
Project            
Account type       
Account status     
Rollup Code        
                   



Qlife – Financial Analysis for September 2021 Financial Statements 

The financial statements for through the 3rd month of the 2022 fiscal year (FY22) are presented.  The statements 

are intended for the use of management and are not audited.  The expected straight-line assumption for accounts 

is 25.0% (3/12).  This is typically a good starting point for analysis. 

Also of note is the format of the reports is changing. This is a standard report from the new financial system.  While 

this reporting model is still in a state of flux, it does serve the purpose of summarizing the data for the fiscal year.  

At this time, a year to year comparative report is not quite ready for use but should be rolled out for the October 

reporting.  To allow comparisons, if desired, the same report format is used for last fiscal year.  When applicable 

the notes below will refer to the prior year (PY) report. 

Operations Fund 

Total revenues of the fund are $171,237.  This is a 23% execution rate but also $52K less than the actuals for last 

fiscal year.  The amount is all utility service charges and is on budget. 

The accounts receivable are not included in this report due to working through the new software.  Currently there 

are issues with accurately showing the payments applied to invoices created in the old system.  A manual review of 

the invoices aging shows a total outstanding of $48,825 with $41,675 in 1-30 days, $6,480 in 31-60 days, $0 in 61-

90 days and $670 in 91-120 days. Staff are working to clean up the report and address the late invoices (2 in 91-

120 days).  

Interest is down compared to last fiscal year.  This is due to the decreased interest rates.  Currently interest is $292 

fiscal year to date; the PY was $499 for a decrease of $207. 

Expenditures are for the most part in line with expectations.  Materials & services are executing at 32.6%  The 

exceptions are: 

 Administrative Costs 89.1% - Staff researched.  For some reason – assuming miss-keying.  This is still 

within the budget which will not be exceeded.  This only causes a timing discrepancy. – No change from 

August report 

 Contacted Services – Legal 108.2% increased $1,408 in September 

 Dues & Subscriptions 160.1% - No change from August report 

 Scholarship 100.0% - No change from August report 

Finance has researched and will continue to review all transactions. 

As it sits now, the fund balance is decreasing by $88,809.  While a decrease of the fund balance is planned, this is a 

bit faster than expected.  This seems to be timing – the Administrative costs are running about $45K ahead of 

schedule.  Even with a declining fund balance, this includes transferring $148,755 to the Capital fund. 

Capital Fund 

Revenue has a large spike, this is due to a billing submitted for $152,851 that had not been considered in the 

budget.  Other than that, there is nothing out of the ordinary in the revenue here. 



The Beginning Fund Balance will be entered in October.  The category labeled “Property Taxes” is actual the 

potential grant added into the budget created.  This is a label mismatch in the new system and is being addressed 

by Finance. 

Expenditures to date have been minimal. 

The fund has an additional $5 million built into it in case any of the available grant funds can be claimed.  In that 

event, the budget is prepared to utilize the additional funds.  If not, the $5M in revenues and expenditures will not 

be utilized. 

Maupin Fund 

The Gorge.Net receipts are in revenues.  Interest is down.   

Expenditures have totaled $6,006 for the Maupin Wifi contract 

The fund is now decreasing due to the Wifi contract charges, but this is expected.  Additional revenue should be 

coming in that will hold the fund stable. 

Summary 

The funds are in good positions.  However, with the implementation of the new system, there are discrepancies 

Finance is still addressing.  (Accounts receivable report, labeling grant revenue “property tax”, following up on 

Maupin fund revenues.) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

Discussion Items 

 Admin Staff Updates 

o Dry Hollow RFP 

 Avangrid Update 

 Broadband Action Team 

 Aristo Technical Management Report 



 
 
 
 
QualityLife Intergovernmental Agency 

 Q-Life. | http://www.qlife.net/ 
511 Washington St, The Dalles OR 97058 | Ph 541-506-2550 | Fax 541-506-2551 |  

 

 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
 

 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK 

DRY HOLLOW CABINET 

EXTENSION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 
 

 

Commstructure Consulting, LLC 
811 Railroad Avenue 

Oregon City, OR  97045 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

PART 1 - BID BOOKLET 
Bidder Checklist 

Advertisement for Bids 

Prequalification Form 

Proposal 

Bid Bond 

Subcontractor Disclosure Form 

Non-Collusion Affidavit 

Responsibility Determination Form 

Notice of Award 

 

PART 2 - CONTRACT BOOKLET 

Contract 

Performance Bond 

Payment Bond 

Notice to Proceed 

Certification of Workers’ Compensation Coverage 

 

PART 3 – SPECIAL PROVISIONS   

 

PART 4 – UNIT PRICING ELECTRONIC FORM 

 

PART 5 – DRAWINGS 
 

DESCRIPTIONS OF PARTS OF CONTRACT WHICH ARE NOT BOUND HEREIN 

 

(1) Standard Specifications 
The “Oregon 2015 Standard Specifications for Construction”.  Copies of the Oregon 2015 Standard 

Specifications for Construction may be obtained by downloaded at: 

 

https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/SPECS/docs/15book/2015_STANDARD_SPECIFICATIONS.pdf 
 

 (2) Prevailing Wage Rates 
The current “Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in Oregon” published by  the 

Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries.  

 

Current copies of the “Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in Oregon” may be obtained by 

contacting Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries (971) 673-0761 or downloaded at:  

 

www.oregon.gov/boli/WHD/PWR/Pages/pwr_state.aspx 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART 1 – BID BOOKLET 
 



BIDDER’S CHECKLIST 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

 

___ Completed Prequalification Form and submit as directed in the Invitation to Bidders (as 

required), by the following date: 

 

    November 19, 2021 at 2:00 PM  

 

 

ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED IN BID SUBMITTAL: 

 

___      Completed Bid Proposal  

 

___ Completed Affidavit of Non-Collusion 

 

___ Certified check, cashier’s check, or completed Bidder’s Bond 

 

___ Signed addenda as may be issued during the bidding period 

 

___ Completed Disclosure of First-Tier Subcontractors Form per Section 00120.40(f)- 

Submitted within two hours of Bid Opening 

 

___ Delivered per methods described in Section 00120.45  



 
 
 
 
QualityLife Intergovernmental Agency 

 Q-Life | http://www.qlife.net 
511 Washington St, The Dalles OR 97058 | Ph 541-506-2550 | Fax 541-506-2551 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

Separate sealed bids for Q-LIFE NETWORK - DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

will be received by the Q-LIFE NETWORK, hereinafter referred to as Q-LIFE, at the office of 

the County Clerk, Wasco County Courthouse, 511 Washington Street Ste. 201, The Dalles, 

OR  97058 as follows: 

 

2:00 PM Pacific Standard Time on November 19, 2021 

 

The bids will then be publicly opened and read aloud.  Bids must be submitted on the Cost 

Forms furnished by Q-Life and shall bear the signature of the Bidder.  First Tier Subcontractor 

Disclosure Forms must be submitted by 2:00 PM the same date at said office. 

 

This project will provide infrastructure expansion of the Q-Life Networks fiber optic network in 

The Dalles, Oregon.  The work to be performed shall consist of furnishing all labor, equipment, 

and materials to place new fiber cable along existing aerial pathway and construct a new aerial 

pathway; proofing and pulling cable through an existing underground pathway. The scope of 

work shall meet or exceed the specifications set forth in the bid documents. 

 

Please note: Splicing operations not included in the scope of this RFP. 

 

 

 

Bidders must register and obtain Solicitation Documents online at the Oregon Buys website 

(Formerly known as ORPIN): 

 

https://oregonbuys.gov/bso/ 
 
 

 

 

Opportunity Number:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
QualityLife Intergovernmental Agency 

 Q-Life | http://www.qlife.net 
511 Washington St, The Dalles OR 97058 | Ph 541-506-2550 | Fax 541-506-2551 

Bidders can also request Solicitation Documents via email by contacting the following: 

 

 Dan McNeely Project Manager  

o Commstructure Consulting, LLC – 811 Railroad Avenue – Oregon City, OR 

97045 

o Phone – (503) 798-2828  

o Email - dan@commstructureconsulting.com 

 

No pre-proposal meeting will be held regarding this project.  Bidders are highly recommended to 

submit review the project documents and respond with any and all questions.  Questions are to 

be sent via email to Dan McNeely via email at the following address: 

dan@commstructureconsulting.com  

 

All Questions related to the project must be received by 5:00 PM on November 12, 2021.  

Answers to all questions will be returned by 5:00 PM on November 17, 2021 

 

Bidders must be pre-qualified to provide communications infrastructure construction services in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon.  Prequalification forms must be received by      

2:00 PM on   November 19, 2021   at the office of the County Clerk, Wasco County 

Courthouse, 511 Washington Street Ste. 201, The Dalles, OR  97058 or via email: 

dan@commstructureconsulting.com  If you have pre-qualified with Q-Life on other projects 

within the last 2 years, pre-qualification is not required for this project. 

 

The attention of Bidders is particularly called to the requirements as to the disclosure of First 

Tier Subcontractors contained in the RFP package & Part 00100 - General Conditions. 
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/SPECS/docs/15book/2015_STANDARD_SPECIFICATIONS.pdf 
 

The attention of Bidders is also particularly called to the requirements for Prevailing Wage rates. 

www.oregon.gov/boli/WHD/PWR/Pages/pwr_state.aspx 

 

Q-Life reserves the right to reject any and all proposals not in compliance with all prescribed 

proposal procedures and requirements and may reject any or all proposals upon a finding by Q-

Life that it is in the public interest to do so.  Q-Life also reserves the right to waive any 

informality in connection with said proposals.  No proposal may be withdrawn after the time set 

for the proposal opening or before the award of the Contract, unless the award is delayed for a 

period exceeding 60 days. 

 

Bids will be considered, and intent to award communicated within 30 Calendar Days from the 

date of Bid Opening, unless an extension beyond that time is agreed to by both parties and 

acknowledged in writing by the Bidder. 

 

 

   PUBLISHING DATE:  ____    _______ 



PREQUALIFICATION FORM 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 
 

PROPOSER'S GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

The Proposer shall furnish the following information.  Additional Sheets shall be attached as required.  Failure to 

complete Item Nos. 1, 3, and 8, will cause the Proposal to be non-responsive and may cause its rejection.  In any 

event, no acceptance will be made until the fully completed form is delivered to Q-LIFE. 

 

Item 1. CONTRACTOR'S Name and Address 

  

  

  

 

Item 2.              CONTRACTOR'S Telephone Number:  

 

Item 3.              CONTRACTOR's License: Primary Classification   

 

State License No.  ,  

Supplemental classifications held, if any:  

Name of Licensee, if different from (1)   

  

 

Item 4. Name of person who will be inspecting site of proposed WORK for your firm: 

 

Name:  

 

Item 5. Name, address, and telephone number of Surety Company and agent who will provide the 

required bonds on this contract: 

  

  

 

Item 6. ATTACH TO THIS PROPOSAL the experience resume of the person who will be designated 

chief project superintendent or on-site project manager. 

 

Item 7. ATTACH TO THIS PROPOSAL a financial statement, references, and other information, 

sufficiently comprehensive to permit an appraisal of CONTRACTOR's current financial 

condition. 

 

Item 8. ATTACH TO THIS PROPOSAL a copy of your copy of your company’s brochure or marketing 

Material. 

 

Item 9. ATTACH TO THIS PROPOSAL or list below three (3) projects completed as of recent date 

involving work of a similar type and complexity: 

 

 

Project Owner and Description Contract Price Owner Contact Information 

   

   

   



 
Proposal - Page 1 of 3 

 (Proposal.frm 950921) 

PROPOSAL 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

Proposal of                                                                                   (hereinafter called BIDDER), 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of     , doing business as                    

*                                          to Q-LIFE NETWORK, (hereinafter called Q-LIFE). 

* Insert "a corporation", "a partnership", or "an individual", as applicable. 

 

In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes to perform all work 

necessary for 

 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

in strict accordance with the contract documents, within the time set forth herein, and at the prices stated 

below and in the Cost Forms attached. 

 

By submission of this Proposal, each BIDDER certifies, and in the case of a joint Proposal each 

party certifies as to his own organization, that this Proposal has been arrived at independently, without 

consultation, communication or agreement as to any matter relating to this Proposal with any other 

BIDDER or with any competitor. 

 

BIDDER hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to be specified 

in the Notice to Proceed and to fully complete the project by      

 .   

 

BIDDER further agrees to pay liquidated damages, the sum calculated at the per diem rate set 

forth in Section 00180.85(b) for each consecutive calendar day thereafter for which the Contractor is in 

breach of the Contract. 

 

BIDDER further states that provisions of ORS 279C.830 will be complied with. 

 

BIDDER in supplying this proposal acknowledges the receipt of the Contract Document 

package. 

 

BIDDER further acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda: 

 

No. 1                 Date:      

 

No. 2                 Date:        

 

No. 3                 Date:      

 

 



 
Proposal - Page 2 of 3 

 (Proposal.frm 950921) 

 

BIDDER agrees to perform all the work described in the contract documents for the following 

unit prices or lump sum prices and in accordance with the electronic cost forms submitted (if applicable) 

 

BID SCHEDULE 

See Exhibit A Unit Pricing Electronic Form (Excel)* 

* Bidder to download and insert pricing into the Form contained in the RFP  

            
 

Segment 1   

Segment 2   

**TOTAL – ALL SECTIONS:  

  

** Bidder shall enter the total amount of the bid above.  Also, Bidder must attach the completed, 

printed and signed Unit Pricing Form contained in the RFP. 

 

BIDDER acknowledges through the submission of this Proposal that the work to be performed in this 

project shall require close coordination with Q-LIFE. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

                                                                       

(Contractor) 

 

By                                                                  Date:      

 

Address:          

 

         

 

         

                                                                                                          

License Number (if applicable): ______________________                    

 

SEAL (if Bid is by a Corporation) 

 

ATTEST:        

 

Resident or Non-Resident Bidder *         

 

* A resident bidder means a bidder that has paid unemployment taxes or income taxes in the State of 

Oregon during the twelve (12) calendar months immediately preceding submission of the proposal and 

has a business address in the State of Oregon. 



1 of 2 
 (BidBond.frm 950920) 

 BID BOND 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 
(SEE SECTION 00120.40(E) - 10%) 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned  
                                                                                                                             as Principal, and 
                                                                                                                             as Surety, are hereby 
held and firmly bound unto Q-LIFE NETWORK in the penal sum of $______________ for the 
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our 
successors, and assigns. 
 

 
Signed, this          day of                                     , 2021. 
 
The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to Q-LIFE 

NETWORK a certain PROPOSAL, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter into a 
contract in writing, for:  
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 

(a)  If said PROPOSAL shall be rejected, or 
(b)  If said PROPOSAL shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract 

in the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said PROPOSAL) 
and shall furnish a BOND for his/her faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all 
persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects 
perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said PROPOSAL, then this obligation shall be 
void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that 
the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount 
of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
The surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its 
BOND shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which Q-LIFE 
may accept such PROPOSAL; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and 
such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these 
presents to be signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above. 
 
 
 
 
 



2 of 2 
 (BidBond.frm 950920) 

 
                                                                  (L.S.) 
            (Principal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By     ____________________________________                                                        
              (Title) 
 
 
                                                                 
              
_________________________________________ 
  (Surety) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By  ______________________________________                                                          
              (Title) 
 
 
 
 
 
IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury 
Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business 
in the State where the project is located. 
 
 
 



DISCLOSURE OF FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXSTENSION 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION                

 

BID CLOSING:   Date:  November, 19    Time:     2:00 PM       

                     

This form must be submitted at the location specified in the Invitation to Bid on the advertised bid 

closing date and within two working hours after the advertised bid closing time.  List below the name 

of each subcontractor that will be furnishing labor or materials and that is required to be disclosed, the 

category of work that the subcontractor will be performing and the dollar value of the subcontract.  

Enter “NONE” if there are no subcontractors that need to be disclosed.   

 

ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NEEDED. 

 

NAME                DOLLAR VALUE  CATEGORY OF WORK 

 

 

1) __________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

 

2) __________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

 

3) __________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

 

4) __________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

____________________  ___________________

 _____________________ 

 

 



Failure to submit this form by the disclosure deadline will result in a nonresponsive bid.  A 

nonresponsive bid will not be considered for award. 

 

Form submitted by (bidder name): _______________________________________________ 

 

Contact name: _______________________ Phone No. ______________________________ 

 

Q-Life must receive this form by:    November 19 at 2:00 PM   



NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 
 

STATE OF     ) 

) ss. 

County of     ) 

 

I state that I am (title)      of (name of firm)   

and that I am authorized to make this affidavit on behalf of my firm, and its owners, directors, and officers.  I am 

the person responsible in my firm for the price(s) and the amount of this bid. 

 

I state that: 

A. The price(s) and amount of this bid have been arrived at independently and without 

consultation, communication or agreement with any other contractor, bidder or potential bidder, except as 

disclosed on the attached appendix. 

 

B. That neither the price(s) nor the amount of this bid, and neither the approximate prices(s) nor 

approximate amount of this bid, have been disclosed to any other firm or person who is a bidder or potential 

bidder, and they will not be disclosed before bid opening. 

 

C. No attempt has been made or will be made to induce any firm or person to refrain from bidding 

on this contract, or to submit a bid higher than this bid, or to submit any intentionally high or noncompetitive bid 

or other form of complementary bid. 

 

D. The bid of my firm is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, 

or inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other noncompetitive bid. 

 

E. (name of firm)        , its affiliates, subsidiaries, 

officers, directors and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and have 

not in the last four years been convicted of or found liable for any act prohibited by State of Federal law in any 

jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract, except as 

described on the attached appendix.  

 

I state that (name of firm)         understands and 

acknowledges that the above representations are material and important, and will be relied on by Q-Life in 

awarding the contract(s) for which this bid is submitted.  I understand and my firm understands that any 

misstatement in this affidavit is and shall be treated as fraudulent concealment from Q-Life of the true facts 

relating to the submission of bids for this contract. 

 

 

  

 (Name of Company/Position) 

 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this    day of     , 2021. 

 

 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON 

My Commission expires:  



Page 1 of 2 

RESPONSIBILITY DETERMINATION FORM 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

Project Name: Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION  

 

Business Entity Name:  _____________________________________________________ 

       

CCB License Number: ______________________________________________________ 

 

Form Submitted By:     Q-Life Network 

 

Q-Life Representative: Name: _                                   _________________ 

  Title: __                             ____________________ 

  Date: __     ______________________ 

 

Q-Life Network has done all of the following: 

 

(__)       Checked the list created by the Construction Contractors Board under ORS 

701.227 for bidders who are not qualified to hold a public improvement 

contract. 

 

(__)  Determined whether the bidder has met the standards of responsibility.  

In so doing, Q-Life has considered whether the bidder: 

 

(__) Has available the appropriate financial, material, equipment, facility and 

personnel resources and expertise, or the ability to obtain the resources 

and expertise, necessary to meet all contractual responsibilities. 

 

(__) Holds current licenses that businesses or service professionals operating 

in this state must hold in order to undertake or perform the work 

specified in the contract. 

 

(__) Is covered by liability insurance and other insurance in amounts required 

in the solicitation documents. 

 

(__) Qualifies as a carrier-insured employer or a self-insured employer under 

ORS 656.407 or has elected coverage under ORS 656.128. 

 

(__) Has disclosed the bidder’s first-tier subcontractors in accordance with 

ORS 279C.370.  

 

(__) Has a satisfactory record of performance. 

 

(__) Has a satisfactory record of integrity. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

(__) Is qualified legally to contract with Q-Life. 

 

(__) Has supplied all necessary information in connection with the inquiry 

concerning responsibility. 

 

(__) Has complied with the tax laws of the State or a political subdivision of 

the State, including ORS 305.620 and ORS Chapters 316, 317, and 318. 

 

 

 

(__) Determined the bidder to be one of the following: 

 

(__) Responsible under ORS 279C375(2)(a) and (b). 

 

(__) Not responsible under ORS 279C.375(2)(a) and (b) 

 

     

                      

  



 
  

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

TO:   Contractor:            

      Address:            

                      

     
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:         

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

Q-Life has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described work in response to its 

Advertisement for Bids dated      , 2021. 

 

You are hereby notified that your BID has been accepted for the amount $      

 

You are required by the General Conditions to execute the Contract and furnish the required 

Contractor's Performance Bond, Payment Bond, and Original Certificates of Insurance within 

ten (10) calendar days from the date of receipt of this notice. 

 

If you fail to execute said Contract and to furnish said BONDS and original certificates of insurance 

within ten (10) days from the date of this Notice, Q-LIFE will be entitled to consider all of your rights 

arising out of Q-LIFE’s acceptance of your BID as abandoned and forfeit your BID BOND.  Q-Life 

will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law. 

 

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to Q-LIFE, c/o 

County Clerk, Wasco County Courthouse, 511 Washington Street, The Dalles, OR  97058 

 

Dated this _           _  day of  _           , 2021. 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK 

 

By    _______________________________ 

 Q-Life Administrator 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

 

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged  

 

By       ______________________________________________                                                     

(Company Name) 

 

this the                     day of                                       , 2021.  

 

By                                                                Title  _______________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART 2 – CONTRACT BOOKLET 

 



Q-LIFE 

DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

DATE: _______________________, 2021 

 

PARTIES: QualityLife Intergovernmental Agency   (“Q-Life”) 

   511 Washington St., Ste. 101 

                        The Dalles, OR 97058 

 

        

         (“Contractor”) 

        

   

RECITALS 

 

A. The work to be done under this contract consists of all work required to fulfill the Scope of Work 

for the project as described in the Advertisement for Bids, Special Provisions and as detailed in the 

Construction drawings. 

 

B. After reviewing Contractor's Schedule of Values, Q-Life selected Contractor to provide the work               

described in the contract documents.   

 

C. The contract price shall be: $_____________________ 

 

Now, therefore, Q-Life and Contractor agree as follows: 

 

1.  Contract Documents 

 

 The contract documents consist of this contract and the schedule of values submitted by Contractor. This 

contract includes the Exhibit B - Conditions for Public Improvement Contracts and the Standard General 

Conditions of the Construction Contract prepared by the Engineer Joint Contract Document Committee, 

2013 edition. 

2.  Scope of Services 

 

2.1.  Contractor shall perform the work described in Recital A when requested to do so by Q-Life.  The 

terms “services” and “work” as used in this contract shall refer to the work described in the Bidding 

Requirements. 

 

2.2  The work shall be substantially complete on or before complete and ready for final payment in 

accordance with the General Conditions on or before 60 days after Notice to Proceed is provided by Q-Life 

or its representatives. 

 



 

3.  Performance and Payment Bonds 

 

Concurrently with the execution of this contract, and as a condition to the validity of this contract, 

Contractor shall furnish the payment and performance bonds to Q-Life in the forms specified and with a 

surety satisfactory to Q-Life in the penal sum equal to the Contract Price in Recital C, conditioned upon the 

faithful performance of this contract upon the part of the Contractor. 

 

4.  Authority of Contracting Officer 

 

 The Contracting Agent for this contract is Scott Hege, QLife President. The Contracting Agent shall have the 

authority to act on behalf of Q-Life in the administration and interpretation of this contract. 

 

5.   Responsibilities of Q-Life 

 

 Q-Life will provide information, documents, materials, and services within the possession or control of Q-

Life and are required by Contractor for performance of the services.  Q-Life shall cooperate fully with 

Contractor to achieve the objectives of this contract. Copying or reproduction fees may apply. 

 

6.  Payment   

  

 Q-Life shall pay Contractor for completion of the work in accordance with the Conditions for Public 

Improvement Contracts (Exhibit B), General Conditions, Contractor’s bid, and ORS 279C.550 to 279C.570. 

 

7.  Warranties 

 

 Contractor shall warrant the work for a period of two years from the date of final acceptance by Q-Life and 

shall retain the performance bond in full force until the end of the 2-year warranty period. 

 

8.   Compliance with Law 

 

 The provisions of this contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon.  

Contractor agrees, while providing services covered by this contract, Contractor will comply with all 

applicable state, federal and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances including, but not limited to, the 

laws and rules cited in this paragraph.  Any provision of this contract in conflict with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations or ordinances is void.   

 

9.   Ownership of Documents   

 

 All documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this contract are the property of Q-Life. 

 

10.  Records  

 

 Contractor shall keep proper books of account and other records pertaining to the services Contractor 

provides to Q-Life.  The books and records shall be made available at a location reasonably accessible to Q-

Life, who may inspect all such books and records, at reasonable times, to verify Contractor's compliance 



with this contract.  Q-Life shall have the right to request an annual audit of Contractor's books and records 

by a certified public accountant chosen by Q-Life to determine Contractor's compliance with the terms of 

this contract.  The cost of the audit shall be borne by Q-Life. 

 

11.  Default 

 

 A default occurs under any of the following circumstances: 

 

11.1 If the Contractor: (a) fails to begin the work under contract within the time specified; (b) fails to 

perform the work with sufficient workers or equipment or with sufficient materials to insure the prompt 

completion of the project; (c) neglects or refuses to remove materials or perform anew any work that is 

rejected as defective or unsuitable; or (d) discontinues the prosecution of the work. 

 

11.2 If the Contractor: (a) becomes insolvent or declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy 

or insolvency; (b) allows any final judgment to stand against the Contractor unsatisfied for a period of 48 

hours; or (c) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors. 

 

11.3 If either party fails to perform any act or obligation required of that party by this contract within 

ten days after the other party gives written notice specifying the nature of the breach with reasonable 

particularity.  If the breach specified in the notice is of such a nature it cannot be completely cured within 

the ten-day period, no default occurs if the party receiving the notice begins performance of the act or 

obligation within the ten-day period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith 

to effect the remedy as soon as practicable.   

 

11.4 Notwithstanding subparagraphs 11.1 through 11.3, either party may declare a default by written 

notice to the other party, without allowing an opportunity to cure, if the other party repeatedly breaches 

the terms of this agreement. 

 

12.  Remedies 

 

 If a default occurs, the party injured by the default may elect to terminate this contract and pursue any 

equitable or legal rights and remedies available under Oregon law. All remedies are cumulative.   

 

12.1 In addition to the rights and remedies to which Q-Life may be entitled by law for the enforcement 

of its rights under this contract, Q-Life has full power and authority, without violating this contract, to take 

the prosecution of the work from the Contractor, and appropriate or use any or all of the materials and 

equipment on the ground that may be suitable and acceptable and may cause a contract for the completion 

of this contract according to its terms and provisions, or use such methods as required for the completion 

of the contract, in any acceptable manner.  All costs and charges incurred by Q-Life together with the costs 

of completing the work under the contract shall be deducted from any money due or which shall become 

due the Contractor.  In case the expense so incurred by Q-Life is less than the sum that would have been 

payable under the contract if it had been completed by the Contractor, then the Contractor is entitled to 

receive the difference less any damages for delay to which Q-Life may be entitled. In case the expense 

exceeds the sum that would have been payable under the contract, the Contractor and the surety are liable 

and agree to and shall pay Q-Life the amount of the excess with damages for delay of performance, if any. 

 



12.2 Any litigation arising out of this contract shall be conducted in the Circuit Court of the State of 

Oregon for Wasco County.  

 

     12.3 Contractor and Q-Life recognize time is of the essence of this Contract and Q-Life and public will 

be damaged if the work is not completed within the times specified in paragraph 2.2 above, plus any 

extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the General Conditions. The parties agree the amount of 

damages to Q-Life and public will be difficult to determine. Therefore, Contractor agrees to pay the amount 

of liquidated damages specified below or if no liquidated damages are specified, Contractor will be liable to 

Q-Life for whatever damages Q-Life may actually establish. Liquidated damages will be measured not only 

by direct losses to Q-Life as a result of the delay, but intangible losses to the general public such as loss of 

use. Liquidated damages are assessed for each calendar day of delay, including holidays and weekends and 

run until the Project is substantially complete, regardless of whether the Contractor or a replacement 

Contractor achieves substantial completion. Liquidated damages are intended to compensate Q-Life and 

public for Contractor’s delay in completion of the work. Q-Life has the right to recover additional damages 

not solely based on delay in addition to liquidated damages, such as the excess costs of reprocurement or 

completion, the costs of restoring uncompleted work, and costs paid to replacement contractors or Q-Life’s 

own employees for completion of the work. Permitting Contractor to complete the work is not a waiver of 

this provision. Q-Life may retain liquidated damages from any payment or retainage due to Contractor.  

Payment or assessment of liquidated damages does not release Contractor’s obligation to fulfill the entire 

Contract. 

 

Liquidated damages shall be $200.00 per day for each day beyond the date specified for Substantial 

Completion the work of the contract is not complete. 

 

13. Termination and Suspension   

 

 Q-Life may terminate or suspend this contract for public interest reasons in accordance with ORS 279C.650 

to 279C.665. 

 

14.  Notices   

 

 Any notice required to be given under this contract or any notice required to be given by law shall be in 

writing and may be given by personal delivery or by registered or certified mail, or by any other manner 

prescribed by law. Notices to Q-Life and notices to the Contractor shall be addressed as indicated above. 

 

15.  Assignment   

 

 Q-Life and Contractor, and the respective successors, administrators, assigns, and legal representatives of 

each, are bound by this contract to the other party to this contract and to the partners, successors, 

administrators, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party.  Contractor shall not assign or 

subcontract Contractor's rights or obligations under this contract without prior written consent of Q-Life. 

Except as stated in this subparagraph, nothing in this contract shall be construed to give any rights or 

benefits to anyone other than Q-Life and Contractor. 

 

 

 



16. Q-Life Benefits  

 

 This contract is not intended to entitle the principals or employees of Contractor to any benefits generally 

granted to Q-Life employees.  Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the benefits not intended to be 

extended by this contract are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure, medical and 

dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, social security, workers' compensation, 

unemployment compensation, or retirement benefits (except insofar as benefits are otherwise required by 

law if the Contractor is presently a member of the Public Employees Retirement System). 

 

17.  Severability   

 

 If any provision of this contract is held to be invalid or illegal, the invalidity or illegality shall not affect any 

other provisions of this contract, and this contract shall be construed as if the invalid or illegal provision had 

never been included in the contract. 

 

18.  Modification   

 

 No modification of this contract is valid unless in writing and signed by the parties. 

 

19.  No Waiver   

 

 No term or provision of this contract is deemed waived and no breach excused, unless the waiver is written 

and signed by the party claimed to have made the waiver.  Any waiver of a breach does not constitute a 

waiver of any other different or subsequent breach. 

 

20. Prior Agreements   

 

 The contract documents constitute the entire, final and complete agreement of the parties pertaining to 

the services, and supersede and replace all prior and existing written or oral understandings except as 

otherwise continued in effect by the terms of this contract. 

 

 

CONTRACTOR   Q-LIFE  

 

 

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

Date:   Date:  

Fed ID #:     

 

 

 

 



 
 (PerfBond.frm 950920) 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: 

 

                                                                                                                    _     

(Name of Contractor) 

 

             , 

(Address of Contractor) 

 

a            *, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR 

     (*Corporation, Partnership, Individual) 

 

Principal, and                                                         _        ____ 

                           (Name of Surety) 

 

__                                                                       _ 

 (Address of Surety) 

 

hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto: 

 

     Q-LIFE NETWORK      

(Name of Owner) 

 

   511 Washington Street, The Dalles, OR  97058__  ____________  

(Address of Owner) 

 

hereinafter called Q-LIFE, in the penal sum of       ($ 0.00) in 

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind 

ourselves, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.   

 

THE CONDITION OF OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a certain 

contract with Q-LIFE dated the                  day of           , 2021, a copy of which is hereto 

attached and made a part hereof for:  

 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well, truly, and faithfully perform its duties, all the 

undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term 

thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by Q-LIFE, with or without notice to the 

Surety and during the one year guaranty period, and if he shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred 

under such contact, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless Q-LIFE from all costs and damages 

which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay Q-LIFE all outlay and 



 
 (PerfBond.frm 950920) 

expense which Q-LIFE may incur in making good any default, then this obligation shall be void; 

otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 

change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be 

performed thereunder or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way affect its 

obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, 

alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that no final settlement between Q-LIFE and the CONTRACTOR shall 

abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three (3) counterparts, each one of which 

shall be deemed an original, this the         day of         , 2021.  

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                                                                                                         

Secretary                                 Principal 

(Principal) 

 

(SEAL)                                 BY   _______________________________  

 

                                                     __________________________________                                                      

      _________________________________________  

 

                                                                                                            

 

________________________________ 

             Witness as to Principal 

 

________________________________                                                                

                      (Address) 

 

                                                                                   ___________________________                                         

       Surety 

 

ATTEST:                               BY ________________________________                                     

           Attorney-in-Fact   

 

                                                                        ________________________________  

                Witness as to Surety                                  (Address) 

 

                                                                   ___________________________________ 

(Address) 

 

_______________________________  Phone:_____________________________ 

                                                                

 



 
 (PerfBond.frm 950920) 

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of CONTRACT.  If CONTRACTOR is a 

Partnership, all partners should execute BOND. 

 

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department's 

most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact 

business in the State where the PROJECT is located. 



 
 (PayBond.frm 950920) 

PAYMENT BOND 
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: 

 

                                                           _ 

 (Name of Contractor) 

 

                                                                                  , 

  (Address of Contractor)   

 

a              *, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR 

 (*Corporation, Partnership, Individual) 

 

Principal, and                                                       _        ____ 

                           (Name of Surety) 

 

__                                                                 _ 

                          (Address of Surety) 

 

hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto: 

 

     Q-LIFE NETWORK      

(Name of Owner) 

 

    511 Washington Street, The Dalles, OR  97058__ ____________  

(Address of Owner) 

 

hereinafter called Q-LIFE, in the penal sum of            ($ 0.00) in 

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind 

ourselves, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.   

 

THE CONDITION OF OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a certain 

contract with Q-LIFE dated the                day of           , 2021, a copy of which is hereto 

attached and made a part hereof for  

 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, if Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, 

SUBCONTRACTORS, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

prosecution of the WORK provided for in such contract, and any authorized extension or modification 

thereof, including all insurance premiums on said WORK, and for all labor, performed in such 

WORK, whether by SUBCONTRACTOR or otherwise, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise 

to remain in full force and effect. 

 



 
 (PayBond.frm 950920) 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 

change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be 

performed there under or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way affect its 

obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, 

alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that no final settlement between Q-LIFE and the CONTRACTOR shall 

abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three (3) counterparts, each one of which 

shall be deemed an original, this the             day of        , 2021.  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                                   ___________________________________ 

Secretary                                 Principal 

(Principal) 

 

(SEAL)                                 BY ________________________________ 

                                                                                      

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

 

                                        ___________________________________   

 

_______________________________ 

             Witness as to Principal 

 

_______________________________ 

                      (Address) 

 

                                                                  ____________________________________ 

                                                    Surety 

 

ATTEST:                               BY    _______________________________ 

                                                  Attorney-in-Fact   

 

                                                                  ____________________________________ 

                Witness as to Surety                                  (Address) 

 

                                                                  ____________________________________ 

(Address) 

 

 _______________________________                     Phone:_____________________________                                        

 

 

 



 
 (PayBond.frm 950920) 

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of CONTRACT.  If CONTRACTOR is a 

Partnership, all partners should execute BOND. 

 

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury 

Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be 

authorized to transact business in the State where the PROJECT is 

located. 



 

 (Proceed.frm950921) 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

TO:   Contractor Name      Date: 

 Contractor Address 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:         

 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

Q-Life has executed the contract documents for the above mentioned project. You are hereby notified 

to commence WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT dated                                 _, on 

or before _                                                     _. 

 

BEFORE ON-SITE WORK CAN COMMENCE, the following items below need to be completed 

(00180.40(b)):  

• Return an acknowledged copy of Notice to Proceed to Q-Life (00130.90) 

• Contract Submittals – Submitted 5 days prior to a preconstruction meeting 

o Project Work Schedule (00180.41) 

o Traffic Control Plan (00225.05) 

o Approved Sidewalk/Street Closure Permit (City of The Dalles) 

• Schedule and attend the Preconstruction Meeting with representatives of Q-Life and 

Project Permit Agencies 

 

Only after the preconstruction meeting is held and project submittals are reviewed and 

approved, can On-site Work for the project begin. 
  

Q-LIFE NETWORK 

 

By    _______________________________ 

 Q-Life Administrator 

 

 

 ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

 

Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged  

 

By       ______________________________________________                                                     

(Company Name) 

 

this the                     day of                                       , 2021.  

 

By                                                                Title  _______________________ 



CERTIFICATION OF WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE 
 

 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

The Contractor, for the purposes of this contract, hereby certifies that it is currently providing Oregon 

Workers’ Compensation coverage for all its employees and will maintain coverage throughout the 

course of the project through one of the following methods: 

 

 

1.  “Carrier-Insured Employer” (State Accident Insurance Fund corp. or other    

 authorized insurer) 

 

  Insurance Company Name______________________________________ 

 

  ID/Policy Number____________________________________________ 

 

2.  “Self-Insured Employer” (Certified by the Workers’ Compensation Division) 

 

  ID number as assigned by the 

  Workers’ Compensation Division________________________________ 

 

3.  I am an independent contractor and will perform all work under this contract without  

 the assistance of others. 

 

 

In the event of cancellation or change in the information above, Contractor certifies that it will 

immediately notify the Department of said cancellation or change and will obtain alternate coverage. 

 

           Dated_______________20___ 

 

 

                     

            (Contractor’s Signature) 

 

 

REMINDER – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED 

 

Has your insurance carrier filed with Oregon Workers’ Compensation Division a guaranty contract as 

proof of coverage for your employees working in Oregon? 

 

For filing information, contact the Workers’ Compensation Division at Labor and Industries Building: 

Salem, OR  97301; Phone (503) 947-7810 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART 3 – SPECIAL PROVISIONS 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

Q-LIFE NETWORK – DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION 

 

1. Project Contact Information 

 

   Questions regarding plans, specifications and project requirements should be directed to: 

 

Dan McNeely 

Project Manager - Commstructure Consulting, LLC 

811 Railroad Avenue 

Oregon City, OR  97045 

Tel: (503) 798-2828 

dan@commstructureconsulting.com 

 

Questions regarding the contract forms shall be directed to: 

 

 

Matthew Klebes 

511 Washington Street, Suite 101 

The Dalles, Oregon 97058 

Tel: (541) 993-7952 

matthewk@co.wasco.or.us 

 

2. Project Overview 

This project will entail placement of new fiber optic cable along existing aerial pathways, 

creation of new aerial pathways, and utilization of existing underground pathways.  The project 

is divided into two The scope of work will include but not limited to: 

 

 
 

New Aerial Fiber Cable Lashing  

New Aerial Fiber Cable Overlashing  

Fiber Cable Slack Storage  

New Underground Fiber Cable  

 

*Please see Construction Drawings and KMZ for additional details and specifications.  

 

The following is a detailed Scope of Work for this project. 



3. Scope of Work  

 

This project will begin at an existing aerial splice at State Road, near Highway 30 (I-84), 

proceeding southeasterly approx. 1,200 feet via over-lashing on an existing fiber optic 

segment going up a hill to NWCPUD Pole #130124200 on the south side of Fremont Street, 

A new 6.6m strand and 288F cable will turn west and cross Old Dufur Road to NWCPUD 

Pole #130114210, turn south on Richmond Road for Approx. 1,300 feet along the west side 

of the road to SE 12th Street, turn south on Richmond Road for approx. 6,400 feet along the 

south side of 12th Street at NWCPUD Pole # 130114080.  From here, the new 6.6m strand 

and 288F cable will continue west for approx. 6,400 feet to NWCPUD Pole #13023061 

where it will turn North and continue along an existing Q-Life strand and fiber pathway to 

NWCPUD Pole #1302080 where a new 6.6m strand and 288F cable will continue for approx. 

850 feet to SE 9th Street, turn west and continue along 9th Street for approx. 2,300 feet to 

NWCPUD Pole #13022160 located at H Street and continue North for approx. 546 feet to 

NWCPUD Pole #130322221 where the new 6.6m strand will be permanently dead-ended to 

existing Q-Life attachments. The new 288F cable will continue via over-lashing for one span 

to existing riser pole NWCPUD Pole #130333220 where the cable will be pulled through the 

existing Q-Life riser and underground conduit to an existing Q-Life Utility vault where slack 

will be left for splicing and termination (splicing and termination to be completed under a 

separate scope. 

 

Slack in the new 288F cable will be stored along the route in strategic locations, over-head 

guys, down guys and anchors will be placed along the route as detailed in the Construction 

Drawing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4. Unit Detailed Descriptions 

 

AE01 – Place ¾” Anchor & 6.6M Down Guy w/ Insulator: 

All labor and materials required to place a ¾” or greater anchor and 6.6M down guy with 

insulator and guy marker. 

 

AE02 – Place 6.6M Down Guy w/ Insulator: 

All labor and materials required to place a 6.6M down guy with insulator and guy marker 

to an existing anchor. 

 

AE03 – Over-Lash New Fiber Cable on Existing Strand: 

All labor and materials required to place fiber cable along an existing strand lead.  All 

cable will be double lashed and properly secured and tagged at each pole attachment. 

Refer to drawing/KMZ for total footage required. 

 

AE04 – Place New 6.6M Strand and Lash New 288F Cable: 

All labor and materials required to place new strand, pull new 288F cable, and double-

lash the new 288F cable to the new strand. 

 

AE05 – Place New 6.6M Overhead Guy: 

All labor and materials required to place a 6.6M overhead guy 

 

UG01 – Proof Existing Conduit Place Pull Line: 

  All labor and materials required to prove the integrity of and existing conduit pathway 

between vault locations and placement of a pull line for use in fiber installation. 

 

UG02 – Pull Fiber Cable in Existing Conduit: 

  All labor and materials required to pull new fiber cables as specified in one (1) linear 

foot of existing conduit.  This unit also includes fiber tag placement, all cable 

management and storage at utility vault locations 

 

5. General Description of Work 

 The underground work to be performed as part of this scope of work may consist of machine 

trenching; directional boring; HDPE, PVC and steel conduit installation; inner-duct and cable 

pulling; and vault installations to accommodate cable placement.  Aerial installations may 

include some make-ready work, tree trimming, attachment hardware installation, placement of 

guys and anchors, strand placement, installation of splice cases, fiber storage loops and aerial 

fiber installation.  Fiber optic cable splicing, terminating and testing, including on-reel testing, 

are not included as part of this scope of work.  

 

   All work will be performed according to standard telecommunications installation practices as 

well as the cable manufacturer’s installation specifications.  The contractor shall adhere to all 

governing agency specifications, codes, and regulations. 

 

 



6. Existing Site Conditions  

   The Contractor shall be satisfied with the work and soil and site conditions before submitting a 

bid. Any special handling, back pulling, restoration and all other special conditions shall be 

included in the Contractor’s bid. 

 

   The Contractor shall provide the labor, supervision, materials, tools, machinery, services, 

incidental materials, supplies, insurance, bonds, and licenses necessary to install the cabling 

system as described herein.  All work shall be performed as described herein and in strict 

accordance with all applicable Federal, State, County, and City Regulations. 

 

7. Protection of Existing Utilities 

   The Contractor shall locate or verify the locating of underground facilities of third parties in 

the cable route area and/or contact the responsible third party for those locations. Utility 

companies are to be notified a minimum of two (2) business days prior to any work being 

performed. The Contractor shall be responsible for hand digging out any pipeline, drainage tile, 

cable, or any other buried facility prior to performing any mechanical excavations in the area. 

The Contractor shall take every precaution to avoid damage to all existing facilities. The 

Contractor shall be responsible to repair and pay for any damage that may occur due to 

excavations of existing utilities. 

 

8. Record Drawings 

   Walk through inspection with Q-Life Representative will be required upon project completion.  

Project shall not be considered complete until deficient items identified (if applicable) on final 

walk through inspection list have been corrected.  Upon notification of completion of the work 

and acceptance by Q-Life, the contractor shall provide to the Q-Life Project Manager a set of 

neat and accurate "As-Built" drawings within 10 business days of completion of the project.   

 

   As-Built data shall be updated and maintained daily on field copy drawings for the duration of 

construction.  Upon completion of the project, the as-built data shall be transferred to a clean set 

of construction drawings for submittal to the Q-Life Project Manager. 

 

The As-Built data shall be detailed on the drawings in either colored ink or colored pencil 

according to the following color codes: 

 

RED:   Work placed according to design and changes to the design 

GREEN:   Work not placed according to the design; omit from design 

BLUE:   Existing utilities facilities, Comments and Notes 

 

 Work performed according to the design shall be highlighted or traced in RED.  Work 

performed according to approved changes or variations to the design shall be neatly 

drawn and detailed on the drawings showing how the changes were constructed in the 

field. 

 Work that was designed but not performed as shown on the drawings shall be highlighted 

or traced in GREEN to show that the work function was not constructed as designed. 

 Existing facilities or utilities encountered; construction notes; additional construction 

related information identified in the field shall be neatly drawn and detailed in BLUE. 



 

   Colored highlighter pens according to the color codes as detailed above are acceptable.  

Fluorescent yellow highlighter pens are not an acceptable form of as-built coloring. 

 

   As-Built drawings shall contain the following data at a minimum for each of the following 

work functions: 

 

Aerial Segments 

 

 Point of attachment height from the ground to the cable and/or strand on all poles. 

 Cable footage (sequential) markings at all cable ends; start and end of slack storage and 

conduit entrance / exit points. 

 Location of all slack storage and cable splice points. 

 Anchor and down guy size placed and lead length between the anchor and the pole. 

 

Underground Segments 

 

 Depth of conduit measured every 25 feet and at every change in direction along the 

conduit alignment. 

 Offset distance measured every 25 feet and at every change in direction from the 

alignment to a curb, edge of pavement or other physical reference object. 

 Location and depth of vaults, hand holes and junction boxes placed. 

 Depth, type and direction of any existing utility encountered crossing the conduit route. 

 Location of magnetic locating targets placed. 

 Cable footage (sequential) markings at all cable ends, start and end of slack storage, 

conduit entrance / exit points. 

 Actual quantity of cable slack storage left in vault locations. 

 Actual wall to wall measurements of conduit segments between vaults. 

 

Directional Boring 

 

 Depth of conduit measured every 10 feet with a running line offset distance from a curb, 

edge of pavement or other physical reference object. 

 Bore plan and profile drawing reflecting the depth and running line offset measurement 

every 10 feet throughout the entire length of the bore. 

 

   As-Built drawings shall have the words "As-Built" with the name of the contractor and the date 

stamped on every sheet in the drawing package. 

 

   Any changes or deviations from the construction drawings must be approved by the Q-Life 

Project Manager prior to making any of the said changes or deviations. 



 

9. Contractor Furnished Materials 

  The Contractor shall provide all material, unless otherwise noted below and contractually 

agreed to for this project.  All material shall be new and free from defects.  Refer to construction 

drawings for quantities.  Materials with a manufacturer and part number must be supplied as 

noted unless otherwise specified.  All other materials need not be from the designated 

manufacturer but must be of equal or better quality. Contractor to provide specifications for 

alternate materials proposed as a submittal. 

 

The following is a partial list of materials the Contractor will be expected to provide: 

 

9.1Aerial Hardware 

All aerial attachment hardware shall be ordered according to the strand size and cable 

required for each segment.  Refer to construction drawings for quantities.  Below is a list of 

the major attachment hardware needed: 

 

 6.6 M strand 

 0.045-in. Stainless Steel Lashing Wire 

 Aerial Line Hardware (bolts, nuts, washers, eyes, spacers, clamps, lags, hooks, 

dead ends, etc.) 

 ¾” – Triple Eye Screw / Plate / Rock Anchor  

 Strand Mounted Cable Storage Systems (snow shoes) – size specific to the cable 

bend radius. 

 Strand Insulators 

 Guy Guards – 6 foot (yellow) 

 Cable Tree Guards  

 No. 6 solid bare copper wire with associated bonding clamps 

 Riser Stand-Off Brackets 

 

9.2 Miscellaneous Materials 

 Asphalt, Concrete, Clean Backfill, Stone, etc. as needed 

 All Restoration Materials 

 All other miscellaneous materials, not shown above, required providing a 

complete system 

  

10. Q-Life Provided Materials 

 

  Q-Life will provide the following materials for installation by the Contractor: 

 

 Cable identification tags with logo and contact information 

 Reflective indoor / outdoor identification stickers (orange w/ black lettering) 

 Single Mode 288F Cable 

 

  



11. Construction Methods and Work Descriptions 

 

11.1 General Construction Guidelines 

   This specification covers the installation of aerial and underground fiber optic cable and the 

splicing and terminating of such.  Vaults will be installed for use as pull boxes and/or splice 

boxes, at intervals or locations specified. This specification also includes building entrance 

work. 

 

  The Contractor shall install the cable according to standard telecommunication installation 

procedures and WEC joint use specifications as identified in the joint use permit and detailed 

in the construction drawings. Aerial installations will include make-ready work, tree 

trimming, strand placement and cable placement using lashing, placement of aerial cable 

storage systems, placement of anchors and guys, and all other work necessary to provide a 

complete installed system. 

 

   The underground conduit shall be placed in the rights-of-way, roadways, and private 

properties as shown on the construction drawings.  The Contractor shall place the designated 

size and number of conduits the length of the underground routes. Inner duct and/or fiber 

cable will then be placed in the conduit by pulling or blowing methods.  Locate wire to be 

installed in all conduit segments. 

 

   All vaults and hand holes shall be permanently sealed where conduits enter and at all 

locations where debris can enter.  All conduits are to be plugged utilizing blank duct plugs 

and simplex duct plugs at all vaults and riser locations.  Foam sealants shall not be a 

substitute for these above-mentioned plugs.    

 

   The underground methods used may include trenching, rock sawing, boring, directional 

boring, hand digging, or other. The Contractor shall install cable route warning signs along 

underground cable routes as designated in the drawings and notes. 

 

   The Contractor shall be held responsible, in all cases, to return the areas of construction to 

original or better condition.  Restoration of the work areas shall be done on a daily basis.  Q-

Life or its appointed representative reserves the right to stop the Contractor’s work until 

restoration of affected areas has passed inspection. 

 

   Refer to the construction drawings for additional general guidelines that the Contractor will 

be expected to comply with. 

 

11.2 Pre-Installation / On-Reel Cable Testing 

   The Contractor may employ the use of an optical time domain reflectometer (OTDR) to 

verify that the cable has not been damaged during shipment.  The Contractor bears full 

responsibility for assuring that the fiber system operates within specification at the 

completion of the project. 

 

   If the Contractor elects to pre-test the cable prior to installation, costs associated for pre-

installation, on-reel testing shall be included in the installation pricing. 



 

   Cable fiber testing will be done at the cable yard prior to the Contractor loading the cable 

for delivery to the jobsite.  The Contractor shall supply all tools, test equipment, 

consumables, and incidentals necessary to perform quality testing. 

 

   Each fiber shall be tested with an OTDR and shall be checked for continuity, length, 

anomalies, and approximate attenuation. Each measurement shall be recorded with color, 

location, and type of fiber measured. The cable ends shall be sealed after testing. 

 

11.3 Aerial Fiber Installation 

   The Contractor shall install all aerial fiber cable according to the manufacturer’s 

Installation procedures, industry standard acceptable practices, and the Pole Owner 

construction standards and specifications for joint pole attachments.  The contractor must 

also conform to the requirements and specifications of the current edition of the National 

Electrical Safety Code (NESC) as well as the rules and regulations of the Occupational and 

Safety Health Act (OSHA).   

 

   The Contractor must use the appropriate installation equipment including pulling machines, 

bull wheels, travelers, sheaves, chain hoists, dynamometers, and pulling grips for the size of 

the cable to be installed and must adhere to the requirements of the manufacturer with respect 

to maximum pulling tensions and static and dynamic bend radii.   

 

   All anchors are to be installed prior to strand installation.  Strand, overhead guys, and down 

guys are to be installed and properly tensioned prior to cable installation. All fiber will be 

installed under tension to avoid possible contact or clearance issues with road crossings, 

structures, and the ground.  All cable and strand blocks, rollers, guides and stringing 

equipment shall be installed to prevent contact with or damage to existing power and 

communications facilities.  Under no circumstances shall any equipment be attached to or 

supported from existing power or communications facilities that are not designed to support 

such attachment or loading. 

 

   All strand and cable segments are to be properly sagged and tensioned upon completion of 

the installation to match existing conditions.  In locations where there are multiple existing 

communications and power facilities, the cable is to be sagged and tensioned to match the 

existing sag of facilities and maintain mid-span clearances. 

 

   Portions of the project may also involve installation on rear lot public utility easements and 

will require the contractor to coordinate access with the property owners or tenants for 

construction.  The contractor shall provide at least 24 hours’ notice to each property owner 

prior to construction.  

 

   The Contractor may be responsible for performing relocation make-ready work of existing 

communication joint-use facilities.  Some communication joint-use facilities and electrical 

facilities will be relocated as required by their respective crews in advance of the 

construction.   

 



11.4 Trenching 

   The Contractor shall be familiar with general guidelines covering the construction of buried 

and underground communications conduit and cable.  The equipment and construction 

methods used by the Contractor shall be such as to cause minimum displacement of the soil.   

 

   Where required, the Contractor shall open a trench, either by hand or by machine, in which 

to place the ducts, ground wire, and warning tape. The depth of the trench shall be the 

specified minimum cover from ground level to the top of the conduit.  The trench shall be as 

straight as practical.  The bottom of the trench shall be smooth and free from any sharp 

edges.  The trench shall be kept clear of debris and loose rock.  All changes in trench grade 

shall be gradual.    Any open trench shall be fenced or steel plated in travel areas and during 

all non-working hours.  Good judgment and care must be exercised to prevent the public or 

construction personnel from falling into open trenches at all times. 

 

   Driveways, lanes, or roadways, which are open cut, shall be opened just prior to duct 

placement.  In no case shall the driveway, lane, or roadway be left impassable at the end of 

the day.  The Contractor shall cut and restore asphalt or concrete where required.  The cut 

shall be made with the use of a concrete saw or similar.  The cut shall be a T-Cut, at a 

minimum, 12” wider on either side than the trench below.  All asphalt/concrete cut and 

removed shall be disposed of and new asphalt/concrete shall be used to restore the area.  The 

new asphalt/concrete shall match the existing asphalt/concrete in depth (4” min), type, 

appearance, wear surface and durability to the maximum extent practicable. 

 

  After placing the conduit in the trench, the trench areas that are designated to be filled with 

clean backfill will be filled using lifts of 12 inches with each layer being compacted to the 

density specified below (or as specified by the jurisdictional permit agency, if stricter): 

 

 Improved areas such as street and sidewalks shall be compacted to at least 90% of 

maximum dry density to within 3 feet of sub-grade.  The last 3 feet shall be compacted to 

at least 95% of maximum density. 

 Unimproved area or landscape areas shall be compacted to at least 90% of maximum dry 

density. 

 

  This process shall be repeated until the trench is filled to the ground line.  A warning tape 

shall be installed 18 inches below ground surface.  The backfill will consist of the earth 

removed from the trench, unless this material is too rocky, or otherwise unsuitable.  The 

surface restoration of the trench line shall be restored as specified in the trench details in the 

construction drawings. 

 

  For trench areas that are designated for reduced depth and conduit protection, the trench is 

to be filled with Controlled Density flowable concrete backfill meeting the specification of 

the jurisdictional permit agency to the depths as specified in the trench details in the 

construction drawings. 

  

  Where the conduits are buried near the edge of pavements, the Contractor shall take 

particular care to avoid damaging the pavement.  If such damage does occur, repairs shall be 



made immediately to meet the complete satisfaction of state and/or local authorities having 

jurisdiction over the pavement.  Damage to banks, ditches, driveways, and roads caused by 

trenching operations shall be immediately repaired to the satisfaction of the inspector and the 

agency having jurisdiction over highway and road rights-of-way. 

  

   The work shall include, but is not limited to, excavating a trench to provide the specified 

minimum cover over the conduit by whatever means required (i.e., machine trench, backhoe, 

hand, etc.), placing the conduit in the trench, backfilling, placing warning tape and/or 

marking balls, compacting, traffic control, and all other operations necessary to restore the 

area to original or better condition.  The work also includes shoring, bracing, dewatering, and 

placing of select backfill as necessary.  The contractor will need to be familiar with the 

jurisdictional permit agency requirements for hard surface restoration procedures and 

specifications and must include this knowledge and pricing within the bid proposal. 

 

   Refer to the construction drawing guidelines for additional trenching requirements. 

 

11.5 Directional Boring 

   Where required on the construction drawings, the conduits shall be installed by directional 

boring methods.  Contractor may also elect to install conduit by directional boring method in 

areas that are not specified as bore.  All work performed on public right-of-way or private 

property shall be done in accordance with requirements and regulations of the jurisdictional 

permit agency. In no case shall the boring be less than 48 inches from the surface of the 

ground or greater than 96 inches (unless otherwise specified or approved by Owner in areas 

that require clearance of existing utilities and substructures). 

 

   The directional boring unit includes but is not limited to the functions of boring or pushing 

to place conduits as specified.  This work also includes the excavation, backfilling and 

compaction of pits, grouting of bore holes and placement of protective barricading and all 

other operations required to place conduit in this manner.  All drilling mud and materials 

shall be recycled on site or disposed of according to state and local requirements at approved 

recycling facilities.  Directional bore segments where drill casings require HDPE innerduct to 

be installed to include staging, pulling, proving, organizing and plugging inner-ducts to 

prevent intrusion of water, soil and contaminants.  This work also includes the placing of 

warning markers in areas directly along the bore path and restoration of all disturbed areas to 

original condition or better. 

 

11.6 Vaults and Hand Holes 

      Vaults shall be installed to be used as pull points, transition points, slack storage, and 

splice points.  The type and location of the vaults and hand holes are shown in the 

construction drawings, and the specifications are detailed in the notes section of the 

drawings. 

 

  Excavation to the correct depth for the vaults to be installed may be carried out by 

mechanical excavator or by hand.  The floor of the completed excavation must be made level 

and compacted.  The compacted excavation shall then receive a compacted layer of 6 inches 

of crushed rock.  The top of the installed vault will be flush to grade or buried as specified.  



Backfilling shall commence after the vault is placed and leveled.  Backfilling shall consist of 

placing backfill along the outside of the vault in 8-inch layers, thoroughly tamping each layer 

until ground level is reached. 

 

   The work shall include, but is not limited to, potholing to verify the suitability of the 

location for placement, digging to the required depth and dimension to allow 12” minimum 

clearance on all sides of the vault and the delivery, setting, and placement of the vault.  The 

installation of ground rods, ground wire, locate terminal route markers and installation of the 

locate and ground wires are included in this unit.  Backfilling, compaction, and restoration 

are also included in this unit. 

 

11.7 Building Access 

   All work shall be done in a "neat and workman" like manner, in conformity with local, 

state and federal building codes.  All work must comply with applicable data system 

standards and National Electric Code standard specifications.  Standards include, but are not 

limited to, EIA/TIA 568-B commercial building wiring standards and EIA/TIA 569-A 

commercial building standard for telecommunications pathways and spaces. 

References: 

 

EIA/TIA Commercial Building Wiring Standard, 606 And All Recognized TSBS. 

National Electric Code 

Underwriter's Laboratories (UL): Applicable Listings and Ratings 

 

 All conduits placed on private property are to be SCHD 40 PVC or SDR11 HDPE 

conduit if placed outside the building and  riser rated flex conduit if placed within the 

building.  Riser conduit or exposed conduit on the exterior of building is to be GRC 

conduit unless otherwise specified. 

 All conduits are to be equipped with inner duct as specified. 

 90-deg. bends are to be "sweep" bends, 3' radius or larger, unless otherwise specified. 

 Conduit pathways within building interiors shall be supported with appropriate hardware 

specific to the existing material or structure. 

 All exterior wall penetrations are to be resealed per building and fire code. 

 All interior wall penetrations are to comply with pertinent building and fire codes and 

are to be constructed in such a manner as to insure the integrity of the penetrated wall. 

 All pull boxes are to be NEMA Type 3R or equivalent. 

 The Contractor shall route the conduit and cable into buildings per State and Local 

building codes.  Refer to the construction drawings and notes for building entry details. 

 Notify the "building contact" person a minimum of 48 hours prior to commencing any 

work on the premises. 

 

11.8 Splicing, Termination and Testing 

   Contractor shall use SC connectors with an APC polish. The loss value of any pigtail 

connector and any associated fiber jumper or pigtail with matching mode field diameters will 

not exceed 0.5dB at 1550 nm. The loss value of a connector and its associated jumper with 

mismatched mode field diameters should not exceed 0.8 dB.    

 



   The Contractor shall perform fusion splicing at locations specified in the Construction 

Drawings.  If applicable, splice locations that have working customers at backbone locations, 

work in splice cases with live traffic may be spliced between the hours of 12:00 AM and 6:00 

AM PST on weekends (Saturday & Sunday) only.  Q-Life Customers require a minimum of 

30 calendar days’ notice to schedule maintenance windows.  If applicable, maintenance 

windows will be defined, coordinated and scheduled by Q-Life according to Contractor 

provided schedule request.  All splicing and terminations on dark fiber and new fiber 

locations that do not pose risk to customers and live traffic can be performed during regular 

business hours. 

 

   The Contractor’s fusion splicing equipment shall be cleaned, calibrated and adjusted to the 

fiber and environmental conditions at the start of the job and shall be checked daily and re-

adjusted if necessary.  Splicing includes picking up and hauling materials to the jobsite, 

opening the cable, splicing the fibers using the fusion splicing technique, placing a heat 

shrink on the bare fiber splice, loading the spliced fibers in a splice tray, and placing the 

splice tray in the closure as directed, encapsulating or sealing the splice, closing the closure. 

 

   Upon completing each individual fiber splice, the Contractor shall perform a lid test on the 

splice to determine loss.  Any splice not meeting the test criteria of 0.1 dB shall be re-spliced.  

The Contractor shall clean up and dispose of excess material.  The cost associated with 

testing the cable shall be included in the splicing and termination lump sum bid items. 

 

   Terminations include picking up and hauling materials to the jobsite, installation of rack 

mounted fiber optic distribution panels (FDP’s) and routing the cable(s) to the rack and FDP 

for termination.  Some projects may specify pre-terminated cable stubs; therefore, no pigtails 

and splice trays will be required at the termination panel.  The contractor shall be responsible 

for installing the bulkheads and connecting the pre-terminated SC connectors from the cable 

stubs into the panel.  All fiber ports shall be labeled as to fiber assignment, cable and 

direction.  In the event that termination is required, scope of work would include installing 

splice trays; opening the cable sheath; splicing the individual fibers to pigtails; placing a heat 

shrink on the splice; loading the fibers in a splice tray; placing the tray in the fiber optic 

distribution panel; assembly of the termination panel; and routing to and terminating the 

pigtails at the bulkhead.  All excess cable shall be neatly coiled, secured and stored in each 

facility.  The Contractor shall clean up and dispose of excess material. The cost associated 

with testing the cable shall be included in the splicing and termination bid items.  

 

11.9 Post Installation Testing 

   Fusion splicing is required for all permanent splices on the project.  The maximum 

allowable splice loss for any splice is 0.10 dB, as measured bi-directionally with an OTDR at 

1310 nm and 1550 nm.  The average splice loss for the segment shall not exceed 0.05 dB.  

Set the fusion splice machine for standard single mode fiber. 

 

   The Contractor shall supply to Q-Life the Optical Time Domain Reflectometer (OTDR) 

traces of individual optical fiber signatures.  An access jumper shall be used which shall 

allow viewing of the entire length of the cable, including the launch end. 

 



   Optical attenuation shall be measured, using a stable laser light source and optical power 

meter, on the terminated fibers in both directions of transmission using the Insertion Loss 

method and shall include the pigtails and couplings installed at the system endpoints.  To 

ensure that an accurate measurement of connector losses is made, jumpers shall be used at 

both transmit and receive ends. 

 

   The cable shall also be tested to assure that no fibers have been transposed along the route.  

Transmit light (using a stabilized light source) in each fiber at one end of the route segment, 

and verify that light is received from the same fiber at the other end of the route segment 

using a power meter.  Record continuity results and the light power loss between the light 

source and power meter for each fiber.  Repair any transposed fibers that are found.  

 

   The Splicing Contractor shall test each fiber independently. Any cable found not to meet 

the acceptable test criteria due to the installation methods used shall be replaced at the 

Installation Contractor’s cost.  The Splicing Contractor shall supply all equipment and 

personnel necessary to conduct the tests.  All test equipment shall be in good working order 

and shall have been calibrated prior to the tests being held. 

 

   The Contractor shall document all test results and provide those results to Q-Life. The 

documentation shall include the name of the person performing the tests, the date and time 

the test was performed, the cable being tested, the equipment used, the procedures followed, 

and the results obtained.  Provide OTDR traces with event tables identifying each splice 

point and splice loss for each splice in Excel format with each enclosure location, fiber, and 

the direction the OTDR is looking accurately identified.  Contractor shall provide the 

documentation of OTDR traces with event tables on a CD / DVD / USB Drive. 

 

11.10 Locate Wire Terminals – T3 (Vault Interior) 

   T-3 Locate Wire Terminals will be installed at all vault locations that are located in hard 

surfaces such as streets and/or sidewalks.  The terminals are Locate Wire Terminal 

enclosures made of polycarbonate and are mounted on an accessory angle bracket on the 

interior riser of a concrete vault lid or interior wall of a fiberglass / composite vault wall.  

The accessory angle bracket will be secured with screws, anchors or epoxy fasteners specific 

to the vault wall or riser.  The terminal then mounts to the accessory bracket. 

 

   The Locate Wire Terminal will have a minimum of 5 Rapid Connect Binding Posts 

installed with Bonding Straps for each terminal.  The binding posts are designed to mount in 

the terminal plate with a threaded stud on one side and compression set-screw wire 

termination on the other side.  The locate wires and ground wires will terminate on the set-

screw side of the plate with the stud side of the plate will having bonding straps and hex nuts 

to facilitate attachment of the Cable Locating Equipment and isolation of locate wire 

segments. 

 

11.11 Vault Grounding & Locate Wire Terminations 

   All new vault locations as shown on the drawings will require the installation of a 5/8” x 5’ 

copper clad ground rod in/or through the bottom of the vault, using caution so as not to 

damage existing substructure.  A 6 AWG HDPE 30 MIL Copper Solid Ground Wire will be 



bonded to the ground rod with a ground rod clamp.  The 6 AWG copper wires will be 

extended neatly from the ground rod to the T-3 Locate Wire Terminal on the interior of the 

vault and will terminate on the designated ground lug.  At each of the vault locations, the 

new 12 AWG locate wire will be extended to the terminals and secured.  The 12 AWG 

Locate wire will terminate on the T-3 Locate Wire Terminal on the interior of the vault on 

the designated lug, corresponding with the direction the locate wire departs from the vault. 

 

11.12 Pole Riser Grounding 

   At conduit locations where the underground transitions to aerial, the 12 AWG locate wire 

will be placed extending up the pole within the riser conduit to the top.  At pole locations 

where a vertical ground exists on the pole, the 12 AWG locate wire will be bonded to the 

existing 6 AWG copper ground wire with a vice-type compression ground connector.  At 

pole locations where  a vertical ground does not exist, a vertical # 6 AWG Solid vertical 

ground will be placed by the Pole Owner on the pole and the 12 AWG locate wire will be 

bonded to the new vertical # 6 AWG ground with a vice-type compression ground connector. 

 

11.13 Building Interior Grounding 

   At building entry locations where the locate wire enters the building, a ground point will 

need to be established for bonding the locate wire.  Extend the locate wire from the building 

entry location to the nearest suitable ground in the area of the building entry.  Follow Local 

building and electrical codes for acceptable ground connection points. 

 

11.14 Permits 

   Q-Life will provide all necessary Joint Use permits for the project with the exception of 

building permits for interior raceway and cable installation (as-required) and Traffic Control 

or Pedestrian Access permits (as-required by The City of The Dalles, OR). The Contractor 

will be required to identify, obtain and pay for any building permits required. The successful 

Contractor shall be provided with copies of all applicable City, County, and State permits 

prior to the start of construction and will be required to maintain a copy on site at all times. 

 

11.15 Schedule 

   The schedule for completion of this project shall be 60 calendar days from written Notice 

to Proceed (NTP).  Upon notice to proceed, the Contractor must mobilize and dedicate crews 

and staff of sufficient size to meet completion date. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART 4 – UNIT PRICING 

ELECTRONIC FORM 

 

**See attached for sample – use electronic version (Excel 

Format) to complete bid.  Please final your bid and then print, 

sign and submit the Unit Pricing Form with your proposal and 

transfer the final total cost to the Proposal Form as well. 



UNIT PRICING FORM

Q-LIFE NETWORK - DRY HOLLOW CABINET EXTENSION

                     Q-LIFE NETWORK Company:

                     511 Washington Street, Suite 201

                     The Dalles, OR 97058 Signature:

Instructions to Bidders: Date:

Item Description Unit Qty Labor Materials L & M Total

AE01 Place ¾” Anchor & 6.6M Down Guy w/ Insulator EA 3 -$              -$                                                 

AE02 Place 6.6M Down Guy w/ Insulator EA 7 -$              -$                                                 

AE03 Over-Lash New Fiber Cable on Existing Strand FT 1617 -$              -$                                                 

AE04 Place New 6.6M Strand and Lash New 288F Cable FT 12488 -$              -$                                                 

AE05 Place New 6.6M Overhead Guy EA 3 -$              -$                                                 

UG01 Proof Existing Conduit Place Pull Line: FT 159 -$              -$                                                 

UG02 Pull Fiber Cable in Existing Conduit FT 159 -$              -$                                                 

Project Grand Total: -$                                                 

2. Please refer to Construction Drawings and Unit Descriptions in the RFB for details

3. Please fill in the Labor & Materials section in each Unit Cost Item below

5. Prices for each bid item shall include all necessary labor, equipment and materials necessary to complete each line item

4. Form includes formulas that automatically combine the Labor & Materials and extend the totals for each unit

1. Please refer to Project Description & Scope of Work in the Request for Bids (RFB)

10/22/2021 Page 1 of 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART 5 – DRAWINGS 











































Aristo Networks LLC
Technical Management Report

By
John Amery
10/26/2021

 Items of Interest:

◦ QLIFE damages.

▪ No new damages to report.

◦ This month we have been focusing on outside plant maintenance

▪ NJUNs tickets, repairs/fixes from audit, etc.

▪ Bringing up Northsky to work tickets in bulk.

◦ FTTH options

▪ Working with Administration on potential FTTH options



 

 
 
 

 
 

Executive Session 

 

 


	Button1: 


